
 

 

 
County Buildings, Martin Street, 

Stafford ST16 2LH 
Telephone: 0300 111 8000 

 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

To:- The Members of the Staffordshire County Council 
 
Notice is given that the meeting of the Staffordshire County Council will be held in the 
Council Chamber - County Buildings at 10.00 am on Thursday, 13 March 2014 to deal 
with the matters set out on the agenda. 
 

Nick Bell 
Chief Executive 

5 March 2014 
 



AGENDA 
(Note: The meeting will begin with prayers) 

 
PART ONE 
 
General Housekeeping and Declaring an Interest 
 

1. Apologies for absence (if any)  
  
2. Declarations of Interest under Standing Order 16  
  
3. Confirmation of the minutes of the Council meeting held on 13 February 2014 

(Pages 5 - 24) 
  
4. Chairman's Correspondence  
  
 The Chairman will mention a range of recent items of news which may be of interest to 

Members 
  
5. Statement of the Leader of the Council (Pages 25 - 28) 
  
 The Leader will inform the Council about his work and his plans for the Council, and will 

give an overview of decisions taken by the Cabinet (and Portfolio Holders) since the 
previous meeting of the Council 

  
6. Notices of Motion  
  
 Mr A. White to move the following motion:- 

 
“That this Council: 
 
(a) acknowledges the public opinion of the petition around the proposals to modernise 
day opportunities for people with learning disabilities and notes the decision made at 
Cabinet on the 15 January to develop tailored and flexible personal care to support 
people with learning disabilities to live fulfilled and independent lives through smaller 
specialist centres and community based support; and 
 
(b) calls on the Cabinet to ensure, during the transition period for the modernisation of 
day opportunities for people with learning disabilities, that regular six monthly reports 
are submitted to the Safe and Strong Communities Select Committee for members to 
monitor outcomes for this vulnerable client group including all those who presently use 
Staffordshire County Council run day centres.” 

  
7. Consideration of the Petition in Respect of Youth Services (Pages 29 - 30) 
  
 To debate the petition regarding the Youth Service in accordance with the County Council’s 

Petitions Scheme. 
  
8. Annual Report on the Staffordshire Local Community Fund 2013 (Pages 31 - 44) 
  
 Report of the Director for Democracy, Law and Transformation 
  
9. Recommendations to Council (Pages 45 - 60) 
  
10. Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel (Pages 61 - 62) 



  
11. Report of the Chairman of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and Rescue 

Authority (Pages 63 - 64) 
  
12. Questions  
  
 Questions to be asked by Members of the County Council of the Leader of the Council, 

a Cabinet Member, or a Chairman of a non-Scrutiny Committee.  The question will be 
answered by the relevant Member and the Member asking the question may then ask a 
follow up question which will also be answered 

  
13. Petitions  
  
 An opportunity for Members to present and speak on petitions submitted by their 

constituents  
  
14. Exclusion of the Public  
  
 The Chairman of the Council will move the following motion so that the County Council 

can consider confidential business in private:- 
 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business which 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 
 

 
PART TWO 
(All reports in this section are on pink paper) 
 
Nil 

  
 
 
 





 
 

NOTICES FOR COUNCILLORS 
 

1. Fire/Bomb Alerts 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately, following the fire 
exit signs.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-
enter the building until told to do so.  
 
2. Attendance Record 
 
Please sign the Attendance Record Book, which will be located at the top of the main 
staircase.  Please ensure that the book is signed again in the afternoon if you are 
attending the adjourned Council meeting. 
 
3. Mobile Phones 
 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Council Chamber. 
 
4. Tea/Coffee 
 
Refreshments will be available from 9.30 am. 
 
5. Questions 
 
Questions must be addressed to the Chairman, or to the Leader of the Council or to a 
Portfolio Holder or to the Chairman of a Committee.  Notice in writing of any question 
must be delivered to the office of the Chief Executive by no later than 1:00 pm on the 
third working day preceding the Council Meeting i.e. by not later than 1:00 pm on 
Monday, 10 March 2014.  All questions and answers will be circulated around the 
Chamber before the commencement of the meeting.  The question and answer will be 
taken as read. The Chairman will permit the questioner to ask one supplementary 
question on each question/answer.  Only the first 15 questions received by the Director 
of Democracy, Law and Transformation before the deadline will be dealt with at the 
Council meeting.  Further information on Questions can be found in Paragraph 8 of 
Section 12 of the Constitution. 
 
NB. Questions for the County Council meeting on 15 May 2014 must reach the 
Chief Executive by not later than 1:00 pm on Monday, 12 May 2014. 
 

6. Notices of Motion 
 
A Notice of Motion must reach the Chief Executive nine clear days before the relevant 
Meeting of the Council, i.e. by not later than midnight on Monday, 3 March 2014.  
Further information on Notices of Motion can be found in Paragraph 11 of Section 12 of 
the Constitution. 
 
NB. Notices of Motion for the County Council meeting on 15 May 2014 must reach 
the Chief Executive by not later than midnight on Monday, 5 May 2014. 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



GUIDANCE ON DECLARING DISCLOSABLE  PECUNIARY INTERESTS AT 
MEETINGS - WHAT SHOULD YOU SAY 

 

DEFINITION OF WHAT IS A DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 

A ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner, ie your spouse or 
civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you 
are living as if you are civil partners, (but only where you are aware that your partner has the 
interest) within the following descriptions: 
 

SUBJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from Staffordshire County Council) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by you or your 
partner in connection with you carrying out duties as a member or 
towards your election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you or your partner (or a 
body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest) and 
Staffordshire County Council- 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; 

and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of 
Staffordshire County Council 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of Staffordshire County Council for a month or longer 
 

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
(a) the landlord is Staffordshire County Council 
and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a 

beneficial interest 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where- 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or 

land in the area of Staffordshire County Council; and 
(b) either- 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds 

£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one 
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one 
class in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that class 

 

 
 

Page 2



 

WHAT SHOULD YOU SAY? 
 

If you also have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest you must notify the Chairman of that interest 
and withdraw from the room when the matter is being discussed. 
 

An example of what you should say 
 

"I have a disclosable pecuniary interest in item number……… on the 
agenda.  The interest is ………  I shall leave the room when that matter 
is being discussed" 

 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS AT FULL COUNCIL 
 

The Code of Conduct only requires that disclosable pecuniaryl interests are declared 
where the matter to which the interest relates is being considered.  Some items will be 
mentioned in the papers for Full Council but are not actually being considered by Full 
Council.  In particular, some items are mentioned in the Leader’s Statement as having 
been dealt with in Cabinet but are not actually mentioned or discussed at full Council.  In 
such circumstances the Monitoring Officer’s advice to members is that there is no need 
to declare an interest unless the particular matter is mentioned or discussed.  As a 
general rule, members only need to declare an interest at full Council in the following 
circumstances: 
 

• Where a matter is before the Council for a decision and/or 

• Where the matter in which the member has an interest is specifically mentioned or 
discussed at the Council meeting. 

 

Page 3



Page 4



 

 

Minutes of the County Council Meeting held on 13 February 2014 
 
Present:  
 

Attendance 
 

Ben Adams 
George Adamson 
Margaret Astle 
Charlotte Atkins 
Philip Atkins 
Ann Beech 
Frank Chapman 
Ron Clarke 
Maureen Compton 
Chris Cooke 
Tim Corbett 
Mike Davies 
Peter Davies 
Derek Davis, OBE 
William Day 
Carol Dean 
Mark Deaville 
Alan Dudson 
Janet Eagland 
Brian Edwards 
 

Terry Finn 
John Francis 
Bob Fraser 
Michael Greatorex 
Sandra Hambleton 
Gill Heath 
Derrick Huckfield 
Kevin Jackson 
Keith James 
Brian Jenkins 
Philip Jones 
Mike Lawrence 
Ian Lawson (Chairman) 
David Loades 
Robert Marshall 
Geoff Martin 
Shelagh McKiernan 
Christine Mitchell 
Geoff Morrison 
Mark Olszewski 

Ian Parry 
Sheree Peaple 
Kath Perry 
Trish Rowlands 
David Smith 
Mark Sutton 
Stephen Sweeney 
Simon Tagg 
John Taylor 
Martyn Tittley 
Diane Todd 
Alan White 
Conor Wileman 
David Williams 
Mark Winnington 
Susan Woodward 
Caroline Wood 
Mike Worthington 

 
 
Apologies for absence:  Len Bloomer, Ian Hollinshead, Jeff Sheriff and Alison Spicer. 
 
PART ONE 
 
22. Declarations of Interest under Standing Order 16 
 
The following Member declared an interest in accordance with Standing Order 16.5:- 
 

 
23. Confirmation of the minutes of the Council meeting held on 12 December 
2013 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 12 December 
2013 be confirmed. 
 

Member Minute Nos. Interest Reason 

Susan 

Woodward 
27 Personal 

Member of the Board of 

Staffordshire Youth for Christ 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



 

 

 
 
24. Chairman's Correspondence 
 
Former County Councillors John Garforth and Raymond Hutchins 
 
The Chairman informed Members of the recent deaths of former County Councillors 
John Garforth and Ray Hutchins. 
 
Mr Garforth represented the Perrycrofts (Tamworth) County Electoral Division between 
2005 and 2009. He served as a member of the Partnerships Scrutiny and Performance 
Panel; Social Care Scrutiny and Performance Panel; and Healthier Communities and 
Older People Scrutiny and Performance Panel. His funeral was to take place at Sutton 
Coldfield Crematorium on 18 February at 11:00 am. 
 
Mr Hutchins represented the Churnet Valley (Staffordshire Moorlands) County Electoral 
Division between 1991 and 1993 and served as a member of the Highways, Planning, 
Waste Disposal and Libraries, Arts and Archives Committees.  His funeral took place on 
17 January.   
 
Members paid tribute to Mr Garforth and Mr Hutchins and then stood in silence in their 
memory. 
 
Queen’s New Year's Honours List 
 
The Council extended their congratulations to Peter Dartford, Chief Fire Officer/Chief 
Executive of the Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service, who had been awarded a 
Queen’s Fire Service Medal for Distinguished Service in the New Year’s Honours List 
2014. 
   
German War Graves Exchange Visit to Bremen 
 
The Chairman informed the Council that, between 21 and 25 January 2014, he, together 
with the Leader of the County Council and the Cabinet Support Member for Public 
Health and Community Safety, had the honour of representing the Council at the 50th 
“Music Show of the Nations” in Bremen, Germany.  The Music Show was held annually 
in aid of the German War Graves Commission.   
 
25. Our vision for Staffordshire - Strategic Plan 2014-2018 
 
The Leader presented to the Council the Strategic Plan 2014-2018. 
 
Members noted that the Strategic Plan was a high level plan, setting out the county 
council’s vision, priority outcomes and the principles of how everyone connected with 
the county council would work. The Strategic Plan outlined the Council’s ambitions for 
what Staffordshire would look like by 2033, and covered a period of four years.  The 
Strategic Plan sat alongside the Medium Term Financial Strategy which covered a time 
period of five years in accordance with best practice. 
 

Page 6



 

 

The Strategic Plan provided focus for the organisation and ensured that the Council’s 
resources were being directed towards the delivery of its vision for a “Connected 
Staffordshire where everyone has the opportunity to prosper, be healthy and happy”, 
and also the priority outcomes that had been agreed by Cabinet in August 2013, i.e. the 
people of Staffordshire will be able to access more good jobs and feel the benefits of 
economic growth; be healthier and more independent; and feel safer, happier and more 
supported in and by their community. 
 
Members noted that the vision, priority outcomes and principles set out in the Strategic 
Plan would be delivered through the county council’s business plan which contained 
more detailed measures, targets and activities.  Performance against the Strategic Plan 
and Business Plan would be reported to Cabinet every quarter and any issue which 
arose would be monitored and addressed by relevant Cabinet Member and Senior 
Leadership Team leads. Progress made against the priorities identified in the Strategic 
Plan would also be scrutinised by the County Council’s Select Committees. 
 
Several Members spoke about the need for the County Council to provide services that 
people really needed; for any consultation on possible changes to services to be 
meaningful; and for the County Council to listen to people’s views.  Mr Cooke also 
commented that the Strategic Plan ought to include reference to what action the County 
Council would take to protect the Staffordshire countryside and Mrs Compton referred to 
the importance of music, the arts and culture.   
 
In response to a question from Ms Woodward concerning what the Council meant by 
“commissioning”, Mr Atkins indicated that it involved: 
 

• understanding the needs of our citizens;  
• translating those needs into definable outcomes; and 
• securing delivery of outcomes within available resources to achieve best value for 

money. 
 
Mr Atkins also spoke about how the world was changing and, as a consequence, the 
need for the County Council to change and be innovative in the way in which it met 
peoples’ needs.  He also highlighted the role that Members could play by keeping their 
communities informed and explaining why and how changes to services were being 
made. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the Strategic Plan 2014-2018 be adopted. 
 
(b) That the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the County Council, be 
authorised to make any minor amendments to the Strategic Plan 2014-2018. 
 
26. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014/19 and 2014/15 Budget and Council 
Tax 
 
The Council received a joint report by the Leader of the Council and the Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and Transformation on the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) 20014/19 and 2014/15 Budget and Council Tax proposals. 
 

Page 7



 

 

Mr Parry expressed his thanks to those members of staff who had assisted in the 
development of the MTFS and also to the Chairman and Members of the Budget 
Working Group for the robust manner in which they had challenged and questioned 
Cabinet Members during their scrutiny of the MTFS/budget proposals. 
 
Members noted that The MTFS had been prepared in conjunction with the Strategic 
Plan and contained the framework for the preparation of detailed revenue and capital 
budgets, decisions on council tax and savings and investment plans. 
 
Mr Parry explained that the MTFS had been prepared against a background of 
reductions in local government finance and an increase in demand for services to 
support vulnerable people.  It was therefore imperative that the County Council was 
innovative in the way in which it provided services and that resources were targeted 
where they were most needed.  It was also recognised that, in many cases, the 
voluntary sector or other partnership bodies were better placed to provide some 
services which, historically, had been provided by the County Council.  Mr Parry also 
added that it was proposed that the level of Council Tax in Staffordshire be frozen for 
the fourth consecutive year and, despite a reduction in spending, public confidence in 
local government had increased. 
 
Mr Jones paid tribute to his fellow Members of the Budget Scrutiny Working Group for 
the constructive way in which they had scrutinised the MTFS proposals.  He also 
outlined the Working Group’s recommendations which had been accepted by the 
Cabinet. 
 
Several Members expressed their concern about the effect of reductions in the finance 
available, including the impact on day care services for people with learning disabilities 
and also on youth provision.  In response Mr White referred to the need for services to 
be modernised in order to meet the needs of service users and he gave an assurance 
that anyone with a learning disability who, following assessment, was found to be in 
need of day care provision would continue to receive it. 
 
In response to a question from Mr Taylor concerning Chasewater Country Park, Mr 
Winnington explained that approximately £7m had been spent on repairs to the dam.  
This work had been necessary and was carried out in the interest of public safety.  The 
County Council was now considering how it could promote Chasewater Country Park as 
a tourist attraction. 
 
In accordance with recently issued Ministerial guidance, the Chairman called for a 
named vote to be taken in relation to the approval of the recommendations contained in 
the report, the result of which was as follows: 
 
Those Members voting in support of the recommendations: 
 

Ben Adams 
Philip Atkins 
Frank Chapman 
Chris Cooke 
Tim Corbett 
Mike Davies 

Bob Fraser 
Michael Greatorex 
Gill Heath 
Derrick Huckfield 
Keith James 
Philip Jones 

Ian Parry 
Kath Perry 
David Smith 
Mark Sutton 
Stephen Sweeney 
Simon Tagg 

Page 8



 

 

Bill Day 
Mark Deaville 
Janet Eagland 
Brian Edwards  
Terry Finn 
John Francis 

 

Mike Lawrence 
Ian Lawson 
David Loades 
Robert Marshall 
Geoffrey Martin 
Geoff Morrison 

 

Martyn Tittley 
Alan White 
Conor Wileman 
David Williams 
Mark Winnington 
Mike Worthington 

 
Those Members voting against the recommendations: 
 

George Adamson 
Margaret Astle 
Charlotte Atkins 
Ann Beech 
Ron Clarke 
Maureen Compton 
Peter Davis 
Derek Davis 

 

Carol Dean 
Alan Dudson 
Sandra Hambleton 
Kevin Jackson 
Brian Jenkins 
Shelagh McKiernan 
Christine Mitchell 
 

 

Mark Olszewski 
Sheree Peaple 
Trish Rowlands 
John Taylor 
Diane Todd 
Caroline Wood 
Susan Woodward 

 

RESOLVED – (a) That the following be approved: 
 

• a net revenue budget of £512.150m for 2014/15; 

• planning forecasts for 2015/16 to 2018/19 as set out in Appendix 12 to the report; 

• a contingency provision of £2m for 2014/15; 

• a net contribution from general reserves of £13.2m for 2014/15; 

• a budget requirement of £498.914m for 2014/15; 

• a council tax requirement of £269.488m for 2014/15; 

• a council tax at Band D of £1,027.25 for 2014/15 which is a freeze when 
compared to 2013/14. This results in council tax for each category of dwelling as 
set out in the table below: 

 

Category of dwelling Council Tax rate 
£ 

Band A 684.83 

Band B 798.97 

Band C 913.11 

Band D 1,027.25 

Band E 1,255.53 

Band F 1,483.81 

Band G 1,712.08 

Band H 2,054.50 

 

• that the Director of Finance and Resources be authorised to sign precept notices 
on the billing authorities respectively liable for the total precept payable and that 
each notice state the total precept payable and the council tax in relation to each 
category of dwelling as calculated in accordance with statutory requirements; 

• the Capital Programme set out in Appendix 8 to the report; 

• the Prudential Indicators set out in Appendix 10 to the report; 

Page 9



 

 

• the Authorised Limit for external debt determined for 2014/15 as detailed in 
Appendix 10 to the report will be the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) 
of the Local Government Act 2003 

• the Financial Health Indicators set out in Appendix 15 to the report. 

• that we continue to develop the Strategic Plan and the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy on the basis of a 1.5% increase in council tax in 2015/16 and future 
years and that services continue to develop their medium term plans on the basis 
of the planning forecasts set out in Appendix 12 to the report. 

 
(b) That the Director of Finance and Resources’ comments in respect of the 
adequacy of reserves and robustness of the budget set out in the report be noted 
 
(c) That the Director of Finance and Resources be authorised to adjust the 
contingency provision to reflect any grant changes announced in the final 
2014/15 Local Government Finance Settlement; and 
 
(d) That the Innovation and Efficiency Board be requested to continue its work to 
identify further savings in 2015/16. 

 
27. Statement of the Leader of the Council 
 
The Leader of the Council presented a Statement outlining his recent work and an 
overview of decisions taken by the Cabinet (and Portfolio Holders) since the previous 
meeting of the Council.   
 
Achieving Excellence for Young People 
(Paragraph 1.1 of the Statement) 
 
In response to a question from Ms Peaple concerning a recent article in the Tamworth 
Herald in which Mr Marshall was alleged to have referred to some youth workers as a 
“let-down”, Mr Marshall indicated that he had not used that phrase but had said that 
some youth workers were “better than others”. 
 
Mr Sutton indicated that public consultation on the future provision of services for young 
people was currently taking place and he asked Members to encourage their local 
communities to submit their views. 
 
Mr Chapman and Mr Francis spoke about the need for youth provision in Staffordshire 
to be fit for purpose and cited examples of excellent youth clubs in their areas which 
were provided by the voluntary sector. 
 
In response to a question from Mr Huckfield as to whether any Youth Clubs would be 
closed, Mr Marshall indicated that the County Council wanted increase the number of 
youth clubs which well used, although the locations from which those clubs operated 
may need to change. 
 

Page 10



 

 

Modernisation of Day Opportunities for People with Learning Disabilities 
(Paragraph 1.3 of the Statement) 
 
Mr Adamson expressed concern that following the review of day care provision for 
people with learning disabilities, the service will become less accessible.  He also 
highlighted data which indicated that nine out of every ten people with a learning 
disability were the subject of “hate crime” and that withdrawing day care provision would 
make users of the service more likely to become victims of such crimes.  Mr White 
responded by undertaking to raise this issue with the Police and Crime Commissioner 
 
Mr Adamson also indicated that, in the Cannock area, there was a lack of alternative 
day care provision available from the private or voluntary sectors.  Ms Atkins added that 
a similar situation existed in the Staffordshire Moorlands and in Newcastle.  In response, 
Mrs Perry indicated that the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee had debated the 
proposals for the modernisation of day care opportunities for people with learning 
disabilities and, subject to some provisos which had been accepted by the Cabinet, had 
supported “option three”.  Mr White added that the Cabinet recognised that, in some 
areas, the market needed time to develop and that, as a consequence, it may take 
between 18 and 24 months to implement the modernisation proposals.  He also 
confirmed that the County Council would continue to support those people with complex 
needs. 
 
In response to a question from Ms Atkins concerning the appeal process following an 
assessment, Mr White indicated that any appeal would need to be made through the 
County Council’s complaints process. 
 
Achieving Excellence: Libraries in a Connected Staffordshire 
(Paragraph 1.4 of the Statement) 
 
In response to a question from Mr Adamson, Mr Atkins indicated that, due to changes in 
technology, people’s needs were also changing and the County Council was therefore 
seeking the public’s views on the shape of future library provision in Staffordshire.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Statement of the Leader of the County Council be received. 
 
28. Notices of Motion 
 
Mr Adamson moved, and Mr Taylor seconded, the following motion: 
 

“This council calls on the government to publish the report into HS2 by the Major 
Projects Authority that is currently being suppressed using the Cabinet's 
"exceptional powers".  
 
This council instructs the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State for 
transport immediately to demand that the report be made public at once, in line 
with the instruction given by the Information Commissioner.” 
 

Mr Adamson referred to need for greater transparency around the HS2 proposals and 
sought the support of the Council to press Central Government to release into the public 

Page 11



 

 

domain the report by the Major Projects Authority.  Mr Winnington indicated that he had 
already written to the Secretary of State requesting release of the report. 
 
Mr Edwards moved, and Mr Deaville seconded the following amendment 
 

“That the Motion be amended by the deletion of all of the words after the words 
“Major Projects Authority” and their replacement with the following: 
 

 ‘and applauds Mark Winnington’s initiative in writing to the Secretary of 
State for Transport requesting its release’” 

 
Those members voting in support of the amendment: 
 

Ben Adams 
Philip Atkins 
Frank Chapman 
Tim Corbett 
Mike Davies 
Mark Deaville 
Janet Eagland 
Brian Edwards  
Terry Finn 
John Francis  
Bob Fraser 

Michael Greatorex 
Gill Heath 
Keith James 
Philip Jones 
Mike Lawrence 
Ian Lawson 
David Loades 
Robert Marshall 
Geoffrey Martin 
Geoff Morrison 
Ian Parry 

Kath Perry 
David Smith 
Mark Sutton 
Stephen Sweeney 
Simon Tagg 
Martyn Tittley 
Alan White 
David Williams 
Mark Winnington 
Mike Worthington 

 

Those members voting against the amendment: Nil 
 
Those members abstaining from voting: 
 

Maureen Compton 
Chris Cooke 
Carol Dean 

Derrick Huckfield 
Kevin Jackson 
Trish Rowlands 

 

John Taylor 
Susan Woodward 

 

Note: The following Members were not present in the room at the time the vote was 
taken: 
 

George Adamson 
Margaret Astle 
Charlotte Atkins 
Ann Beech 
Ron Clarke 
Peter Davis 
 

Derek Davis 
Bill Day 
Alan Dudson 
Sandra Hambleton 
Brian Jenkins 
Shelagh McKiernan 

Christine Mitchell 
Mark OLszewski 
Sheree Peaple 
Diane Todd 
ConorWileman 
Caroline Wood 
 

The Chairman declared the amendment carried. 
 
Members then debated the substantive motion and, following a vote, the Chairman 
declared the motion carried. 
 

Page 12



 

 

RESOLVED – That this council calls on the government to publish the report into HS2 
by the Major Projects Authority and applauds Mark Winnington’s initiative in writing to 
the Secretary of State for Transport requesting its release. 
 
29. Recommendations to Council 
 
Pay Policy Statement 2014/15 – Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 
 
The Council were informed that it was a legal requirement of the Localism Act 2011 for 
the County Council to have a Pay Policy statement which must be published annually 
before 31 March. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Pay Policy Statement for 2013/14 (as appended to the report) 
be approved. 
 
30. Report of the Chairman of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority 
 
RESOLVED – That the Periodic Report of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority be received. 
 
31. Questions 
 
Ms S. Woodward asked the following question of the Cabinet Member for Care whose 
reply is set out below the question:- 

 
Question 
 
The Cabinet Member will be aware of the recent report by the UK Homecare 
Association saying that councils pay providers too little for home care services and 
recommending a minimum rate that local authorities should pay care providers, not 
only to cover care workers’ basic wages but also to cover travel time between the 
homes of those needing care and also an allowance for training in order to provide 
better services.  The rate they suggest is £15.19 per hour. Can the Cabinet Member 
tell me what hourly rate is currently paid for home care by this Council? 
 
Reply 
 
The UKHCA figure of £15.19 per hour was produced using a model developed by 
private home care providers who are members of the UKHCA. The UKHCA briefing 
states that the £15.19 figure is indicative only and should not be used to set contract 
prices or as an alternative to determine what rates should be in local areas, once 
local factors have been taken into account. 
 
Government guidance and case law has shown that rates paid for care services 
should be based upon sound methodologies, consider all relevant local factors and 
include engagement with providers and users of services alike.  
 

The UKHCA briefing also states that in 2012, they found no evidence that Councils 
made additional payments for travel time or travel costs. This is clearly flawed as 

Page 13



 

 

Staffordshire County Council have been making such payments, for services 
delivered in hard to reach areas, since 2011. 
 
Staffordshire County Council currently pays a number of different rates depending 
on the individual needs of the service users being supported, for example someone 
with physical disabilities may require different support to someone with mental 
health needs. On average we pay £14.42 per hour for home care, ranging from £11 
per hour for some low level services, up to £21 per hour to meet more complex 
needs. 
 
Care providers ‘tendered’ their own prices to supply services, so the rate paid is 
based upon what providers told us they required to deliver the service, against a 
specification that the Council produced which stipulated the level of training care 
workers should receive and the requirements to travel between visits, etc. In certain 
circumstances, given the diverse geography of the county, the Council pays an 
additional £1.50 per hour for services delivered in ‘hard to reach’ areas, along with a 
travel subsidy of 50% of the hourly rate per visit. 
 
The UKHCA briefing is helpful in providing another point of view about how best to 
achieve the requirements of guidance, but should not be considered as a definitive 
methodology for determining home care rates in Staffordshire. 
 
Supplementary Question 
 
I’m grateful to the Cabinet Member for the response. It will not have gone unnoticed 
to him and perhaps to more Members of the Council that during the Statement of 
the Leader of the Council we had reference to the draft Staffordshire care quality 
compact and within that it says that we want to make sure that people are being 
treated fairly and with dignity and that the behaviour and attitude of staff and the 
knowledge and skills of staff are seen as an essential component to delivering high 
quality care. In order for that to happen there has got to be proper remuneration for 
care providers to allow particularly staff training and travel to and from their clients. 
The answer is for everyone to see that on average we pay £14.42 per hour.  The 
Cabinet Member has said that is part of the tender process. I hope he will use his 
good offices to make sure that we pay the level that the industry are seeking, in 
order to ensure that we get the highest possible quality of care staff and training in 
order to benefit the people of Staffordshire? 
 
Reply 
 
I do believe that across the board we are providing a fair payment to Care staff. I 
would also point out that dignity does not just require money; to make dignity 
happen it requires the right state of mind and attitude.   To further promote dignity in 
care we have recently launched the dignity network and have been promoting 
DigniTea Parties to get the message across that dignity is important in everything 
that we do when it comes to caring for people. 
 

Ms M. Compton asked the following question of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Resources and Transformation whose reply is set out below the 
question:- 

Page 14



 

 

 
Question 
 
Given that the Shire Hall in Stafford is a Grade 2* listed building of historic 
importance in Stafford, what advice have you been given regarding its sale? 
 
Reply 

 
The County Council has not made any decision at this time to sell Shire Hall. We 
are simply considering it in the wider context of Stafford's development. 
 
As a Council that follows good asset management practice all buildings are 
reviewed from time to time to ensure that they are viable and suitable and that they 
positively contribute to our community. 
 
Supplementary Question 
 
I’m delighted that you’re listening to the 2800 people who signed the petition who 
really value the library and art gallery. Would you consider a meaningful 
consultation on what the people of Stafford want in their Shire Hall as they are really 
keen to contribute positively on this?  
 
Reply 
 
We have no intention to do anything to the Shire Hall; it is an important historical 
and protected building in the county town.  It is incredibly valuable to this town and 
what we want to do is to ensure that it contributes even more to the life, the cultural 
life and to the history of this county and to the economy of Stafford.  I think that 
more could be done with this important building.  Let me reassure the people of 
Stafford we are very determined to preserve the culture and the heritage of this 
county. We have invested heavily in it and will continue to do so.  

 
Mr M. Winnington asked the following question of the Leader of the Council whose reply 
is set out below the question:- 

 
Question 
 
I have been approached by residents of Gnosall who have asked me what action 
has been taken on the petition which was presented to the County Council and 
following that submission would Councillor Lawson, Chairman, like to take a tour of 
the village? 
 
Reply 
 
The contents of the petition from the local residents of Gnosall have been noted.  As 
a Council that follows good asset management practice all land and buildings are 
reviewed to ensure that they positively contribute to our community. The County 
Council is aware that there is a need for new housing in the area and remains of the 
view that this site provides the most sustainable alternative for providing the 
required housing need. With regard to the invitation for the Chairman of the County 

Page 15



 

 

Council to have a tour of the village, I am informed that Mr Lawson would be 
delighted to accept the invitation. 
 
Supplementary Question 
 
The representatives acting on behalf of the local resident have asked me to extend 
their thanks to you for your reply and also to the Chairman of the County Council for 
accepting the invitation to visit Gnosall.  However, they are of the view that your 
reply does not really answer the questions they have asked about the petition.  
Would you give them a written response regarding the weight the Council gives to 
local opinion on these matters? 
 
Reply 
 
We have a duty to make sure that we get the maximum benefit from our assets.  
With regard to the planning application for the proposed housing development on 
this site, Stafford Borough Council is the local planning authority and, as part of the 
planning approval process, they would have to conform with the requirement to 
consult relevant parties.   

 
Mrs C. Mitchell asked the following question of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Infrastructure whose reply is set out below the question:- 

 
Question 
 
Will the Cabinet Member for Economy and Infrastructure confirm to the Council 
what the administration's view is of the proposals from Stoke-on-Trent City Council 
for a station on the HS2 route at Stoke? 
 
Reply 
 
As a county council it is our duty to get the best deal for Staffordshire – and that is 
exactly what we are going to do.  
 
Our preferred option is not to have HS2 passing through 45 miles of rural 
Staffordshire and our focus remains to mitigate the impact on this county, 
communities and businesses. 
 
Drawing on our experience on Phase One we have submitted a detailed response 
to the consultation on the published route for the second phase of this national 
transport scheme.   
 
We also understand why other authorities are seeking to get the best result for their 
areas and, while Crewe was included within the announcement of the initial 
preferred route in January 2013, we still need to see the technical detail of Stoke-
on-Trent’s very recent proposal before we can provide informed comment on this. 
 
I believe that connectivity through the wider transport system is crucial and HS2 
must either enhance or compliment this if it is to be built – which is where our focus 

Page 16



 

 

lies.  It is for this reason that we need to ensure that the Handsacre junction is 
retained, to preserve a service into Stafford.   
 
When considering any alterations to the route our only concern is that any final 
decisions impact less and not more on our county. 
 
Supplementary Question 
 
I’d like to thank the Cabinet Member for the answer to my question about the station 
at Stoke-On-Trent although he hasn’t really answered the question with any idea of 
what his thoughts are on this.  Does the Cabinet Member support the view of Ed 
Balls that the HS2 legislation should be delayed until after the next election? 
 
Reply 
 
That is not a matter for the County Council, and is a matter for the Central 
Government to decide. The only advice I can give is to suggest you write to your MP 
and tell him of your concerns.  

 
Mrs T. Rowlands asked the following question of the Leader of the Council whose reply 
is set out below the question:- 

 
Question 
 
Does the Corporate Parenting responsibility of County Councillors apply to all 
children in Staffordshire? 
 
Reply 
 
The Local Authorities formal Corporate Parenting Responsibility relates to all those 
children and young people who are in our “care” (i.e. the care of Staffordshire 
County Council) under Sections 20 or 31 of the Children’s Act 1989 and for those 
care leavers entitled to leaving care support (up to the age of 21 or 24 dependent on 
circumstances), where ever they may live in the UK.    
 
Supplementary Question 
 
I believe that protecting all children is one of the most important responsibilities of all 
adults not just the Members here.  
 
The county council has got in place its statutory safeguarding policy and the 
corporate parenting role seeks to protect looked after children.  
 
For some people, in their work, keeping children safe and protecting them is part 
and parcel of their life. The public have high expectations of teachers and social 
workers and know only too well what happens when things go wrong. If we accept 
this responsibility towards all children, I’m wondering why it’s possible for a decision 
to be made anywhere in this council which fails to recognise that responsibility. I 
refer to a decision made by this council to reject an application by network rail to 
close a level crossing in my division on the west coast mainline.  

Page 17



 

 

In the light of this where evidence was presented that children play ‘chicken’ on this 
line amongst other games, one incident cited was 3 children lying on this crossing 
as a train approached. On that occasion they escaped death. But despite the 
evidence, the safety of children was not addressed at all and that’s the issue that 
concerns me. So I would ask what measures will you consider to ensure that 
councillors recognise the importance of addressing the issue of child safety and 
welfare and that the Authority as a whole makes child safety its highest priority? 
 
Reply  
 
The local authority’s formal corporate parenting responsibility relates to all those 
children and young people who are in our care (i.e. the care of Staffordshire County 
Council) under sections 20 and 31 of the Children’s Act 1989 and for those care 
leavers entitled to leave care support (up to the age of 21 or 24 dependant on 
circumstances) wherever they may live in the UK.  
 
There is a duty beyond that for professionals and other services to undertake and 
understand the work that goes behind the common assessment framework.  As 
members, if you hear of something like the activities you’ve just described then you 
should make a report of that activity to the relevant authorities such as the Police, 
who would then undertake a common assessment framework. 

 
Mrs C. Atkins asked the following question of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Finance, Resources and Transformation whose reply is set out below the question:- 
 

Question 
 
What are the County Council’s plans for the Kniveden site on Mount Road, Leek? 
 
Reply 
 
We are currently in the process of identifying a strategic property partner to review 
the use of all our buildings and land to ensure we are getting both the maximum use 
and maximum value for Staffordshire taxpayers. 
 
Where buildings are empty, such as Kniveden Hall in Leek, which has been 
identified as a potential site for dementia care, we do from time to time allow 
“property guardians” to live there on a temporary basis. This not only helps protect a 
building from becoming a target for vandals, but also is a cost-effective way to 
ensure the property doesn’t fall into disrepair.  This is a management arrangement 
used by local authorities across the country and the county council receives no 
rental income from these agreements. There are currently approximately ten 
guardians living at Kniveden. 
 
Supplementary Question 
 
The County Council signed an agreement with Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council to develop a dementia centre on this particular site nearly four years ago.  Is 
there still not a timetable to develop that dementia centre and, if not, why was the 

Page 18



 

 

Spring Hill Home for people with learning disabilities closed just before Christmas 
and now being rented out? 
 
Reply 
 
The building is not being rented out, it is being occupied at no cost to the County 
Council as a means of protecting and securing it, so that it remains in good order.  
 
We still have an ambition to create a centre of excellence for dementia but it isn’t 
something that you can do overnight.  Perhaps in hindsight maybe timings could 
have been a little bit different but, at the end of the day, I don’t think it really has had 
any real effect on what we are trying to do in the longer term which is to try and 
improve services for dementia sufferers in the County; something which is an 
increasing demand and something which we are determined to address.  

 
Mrs C. Atkins asked the following question of the Cabinet Member for Children, 
Communities and Localism whose reply is set out below the question:- 

 
Question 
 
Is the County Council conducting a review of the County’s Children’s Centres? If so, 
who is conducting the review, what are the review’s terms of reference, what are the 
objectives of the review and are there any budgetary implications? 
 
Reply 
This administration wants all children in Staffordshire to have an excellent start in 
life. This includes, but is not restricted to, support for Staffordshire’s most vulnerable 
families.   
 
I believe therefore that we need to consider our Early Years Offer for all families and 
with this in mind I propose to seek the approval of Cabinet in March to engage with 
stakeholders, including parents, on how we may work differently with partners in the 
future to ensure the needs of families are met.  At this stage it is too early to say 
how this may affect our Children’s Centres or what the terms of reference for any 
review may be. 
 
We will of course keep Members informed. 

 
Supplementary Question 
 
There has already been I think on the County Council’s website, an online survey 
which suddenly is no longer available. I wondered why that is the case, surely that 
survey was about consulting stakeholders as you indicate in your answer, but what I 
am particularly concerned about is the local children’s centre in Leek next door to 
Beresford First School.  When I visited the school recently, the acting Head teacher 
and the parent teacher association raised their concerns with me that he building 
appears to be empty or there is little going on there.  They made representations 
about being able to take over the building given that it is on their site rather than it 
sitting there virtually empty and therefore a possible target for vandalism.  
 

Page 19



 

 

Reply 
 
I think the survey that you were referring to was part of an annual survey that we 
have a responsibility to do on the use of our children’s centres that went out without 
my knowledge.  As we are conducting a review of children’s centres, I thought it 
inappropriate to run these two processes so the survey was withdrawn.  
 
Members will know that I’m not precious about safeguarding buildings; I’m more 
concerned with the activities that take place in our buildings. Children’s centres have 
been around for a number of years but have they done the job that they were 
intended to do? Have they made a difference?  When you look at what is happening 
around the County today, we’ve got more children at risk, more families in crisis, 
we’ve got more calls to the social care referral systems and we’ve got more children 
in care. I would therefore say that children’s centres have failed to do the job they 
were intended to do.  
 
So I think we’ve got to have a review of Children’s Centres if we are to turn this 
situation around.  I would like to be helping 100% of the families that need our 
support but in the next couple of years.   What we are proposing to do with the 
review is come up with strategies and policies that will deliver our outcomes - that 
children remain safe, they are happy, they are healthy and they are ready for school 
when they get to school age and that’s what we will do going forward through this 
review.  

 
Mr M. Worthinton asked the following question of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Infrastructure whose reply is set out below the question:- 
 

Question 
 
Can I have an update on the important pinch point proposal on the A50 
Denstone/Rocester junctions and any further planned work? 
 
Reply 

 
Improved roads keep goods and people on the move and are vital as we strive to 
improve Staffordshire’s economy, creating a connected county where businesses 
are attracted to invest and grow. In May 2013, the County Council secured £1.89 
million from the Government to deliver highways improvements to the A50 to Alton 
Growth Corridor. Currently, economic growth in that area is seriously constrained by 
sub-standard junctions and narrow roads. The scheme comprises three elements: 
improvements to the Rocester Junctions, the Denstone Junction, and general safety 
and traffic management measures along the corridor. Collectively these will enable 
existing local businesses, such as JCB World Headquarters and Alton Towers 
Resort, to develop and grow jobs, whilst also meeting the access needs of the local 
communities. Construction works for the Rocester Junction Improvements started in 
November last year, with the first new roundabout opened to traffic on 22nd January. 
Work is continuing on the site and the project is scheduled to be complete by the 
end of May. Detailed highways design work is well underway on the Denstone 
scheme. The land acquisition process has started and a public consultation for the 
scheme will take place on 27th February. Construction work on this second junction 

Page 20



 

 

is scheduled to start this November, although all options for delivery are currently 
being considered which might allow works to start earlier than scheduled. The safety 
and traffic management enhancements are taking place concurrent to both projects.  

 
Mr G. Morrison asked the following question of the Leader of the Council whose reply is 
set out below the question:- 

 
Question 
 
Can the Leader give me an update regarding the unblocking of the A50 artery and 
the resulting benefits to Uttoxeter residents? 
 
Reply 
 
In December 2013, the Government announced a major infrastructure investment to 
significantly upgrade the A50 trunk road in Uttoxeter. The upgrade will consist of a 
number of highways projects, which will be delivered by Staffordshire County 
Council on behalf of the Department for Transport. These projects will support 
businesses and communities right along the A50, promising to cut traffic jams and 
speed journey times, and improve road safety, along one of the key trunk routes 
between the East and West Midlands. These works and associated costs will be 
funded by Government, with a contribution from local developers. The County 
Council is working with the Highways Agency to progress the scheme and is 
finalising a draft design. There will be a public consultation from 24th February to 7th 
March and a planning application is being prepared. We will shortly be publicising 
the consultation and how local people can have their say. Subject to the necessary 
approvals, construction work on the first project will start this year.  
 
Improving roads to keep goods and people on the move is vital as we strive to 
improve Staffordshire’s economy, creating a connected county where businesses 
are attracted to invest and grow. This scheme is a major initiative which will support 
the development of the A50 Corridor and new homes in and around Uttoxeter, with 
wider benefits for the whole Staffordshire economy.  

 
Mr M. Worthington asked the following question of the Cabinet Member for Health and 
Wellbeing whose reply is set out below the question:- 
 

Question 
 

If the proposal on Achieving Excellence for Young People goes through (broadly as 
written), will the National Citizen Scheme and the Duke of Edinburgh Award 
Scheme continue in Staffordshire? 
 
Reply 
 
Yes.  We are in dialogue with the Duke of Edinburgh and National Citizenship 
Service national/regional leads as part of the consultation on Achieving Excellence 
for Young People.  We intend to support both schemes but the detail of how these 
will run may change subject to Cabinet decision and feedback from partner 
agencies as part of the consultation. 

Page 21



 

 

 
Supplementary Question 
 
Would you please keep me informed with regard to the future arrangements for the 
provision of the Duke of Edinburgh Award scheme in Staffordshire? 
 
Reply  
 
Yes, I will keep you informed. Without pre-judging the result of this consultation, I 
agree with you that the National Citizen scheme and the Duke of Edinburgh award 
scheme are very valued services and it is our intention to make sure these are 
continued and indeed expanded. 

 
Mr M. Deaville asked the following question of the Cabinet Support Member for Public 
Health and Community Safety whose reply is set out below the question:- 

 
I understand that Staffordshire County Council spends about £300,000 per annum 
on commissioning Staffordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services.  Can you 
explain what they do for that money? 
 
Reply 

 
Staffordshire Council of Voluntary Youth Services (SCVYS) is the only specialist 
youth infrastructure organisation in the County that works alongside other specialists 
in rural, faith and BME communities.  It receives £301,000 per year from the County 
Council.  The initial three year contract terminates at the end of March 2014 but has 
been extended until September 2015. 
 

The funding for SCVYS to develop, establish and support voluntary youth groups to 
offer quality youth opportunities for young people in Staffordshire.  SCVYS trains 
volunteers to manage, organise and lead youth groups in local communities.  The 
training includes ensuring statutory safeguarding procedures are in place, 
appropriate health and safety polices are implemented and a range of additional 
training opportunities are provided to enhance the organisations’ ability to deliver 
youth provision. 
 
Currently SCVYS has 103 member organisations running 750 weekly delivery units 
with 6,000 volunteers.  It provides support to organisations delivering to 34,500 
young people across Staffordshire. 
 
The organisation is involved with a number of international youth exchange 
activities.  These offer young people the opportunity of exchange visits to Russia, 
Germany and Japan. 
 
SCVYS is recognised nationally as one of the leading voluntary sector infrastructure 
organisations.  Some of its work is highlighted nationally as best practice across the 
voluntary sector. 

 

Page 22



 

 

Supplementary Question 
 
I am sure that everyone in this chamber will join me in agreeing that there is a 
tremendous amount of work done by our volunteers in Staffordshire.  Will these 
organisations and individuals receive financial support and help to continue the 
great work that they do?  
 
Reply 
 
At our request in 2012, Staffordshire Council Voluntary Youth Services launched a 
small grant scheme for smaller organisations to help them meet essential running 
costs.  Smaller groups in particular have been particularly welcoming of that money 
and I understand that you know too well that there are groups within your own 
division who have benefited from the scheme. 
  
I recently attended the SCVYS live event at the County Showground which 
showcased a lot of volunteer groups and the tremendous amount of work going on 
around the County; all of whom can potentially benefit from these small grants. 

 
32. Petitions 
 
(i) Potential Reduction in Bus Services in Stone 
 
Mr Jones presented a petition from local residents opposing the potential reduction in 
bus services serving Stone and the surrounding area. 
 
(ii) Request for Parking Restrictions along Various Roads on Virginia Park, 
Stafford 
 
Mr Winnington presented a petition from local residents seeking the introduction of 
parking restrictions along various roads on Virginia Park, Stafford. 
 
(iii) Parking in Churchill Road, Schoolfields Road, Barnes Road and Church Close, 
Shenstone 
 
Mr Smith presented a petition from local residents seeking action to resolve illegal and 
inconsiderate parking along Churchill Road, Schoolfields Road, Barnes Road and 
Church Close in Shenstone. 
 
(iv) Request for Parking Restrictions along Pinfold Hill, Shenstone 
 
Mr Smith presented a petition from local residents seeking the introduction of parking 
restrictions along Pinfold Hill, Shenstone. 
 
(v) Save Stafford Shire Hall Campaign 
 
Mrs Compton presented a petition opposing the possible removal of the library, gallery 
and other facilities from the Shire Hall in Stafford. 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

  
Chairman 

 

Page 24



Statement of the Leader of the Council 
 

1. Staffordshire’s Communities 
 
1.1 Infrastructure+ 
 
The current contract for highway maintenance functions comes to an end in April 
2014. In light of this, Cabinet has agreed to enter into a strategic partnership with 
Amey for the delivery of improvements and maintenance of the County Council’s 
infrastructure assets. The Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Place, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economy and Infrastructure, has been 
authorised to agree the final details of the scope of services to be included in the 
contract with Amey and also contract conditions. 
 
(Cabinet – 19 February 2014) 

 
1.2 Kingswood Lakeside Business Park  
 
The Kingswood Lakeside Business Park is partially completed and has started to 
deliver results and more jobs for local people. Two developments are completed, two 
plots are the subject of negotiations and there is interest in further plots. However, 
the delivery of these further developments is being hampered by various issues.  
The scheme needs an increased budget for completion of outstanding works, 
including remaining on-site infrastructure.  The Cabinet have therefore agreed an 
increase in investment in the Kingswood Lakeside Phase 2 scheme from the 
previously approved £7.03M up to a maximum of £7.68.  
 
(Cabinet – 19 February 2014) 

 
1.3 Centralisation of County Archive Service and William Salt Library 
Collections 
 
Bringing together the county’s collections from the existing three sites onto one 
modern accessible site will improve visitors’ experience and the quality of service 
offered.  Cabinet has therefore agreed a proposal to extend Staffordshire Record 
Office to enable the two record offices at Stafford and Lichfield as well as the William 
Salt Library collection to be brought together onto one site.  Cabinet has also agreed 
to the submission of a grant application to the Heritage Lottery Fund towards the 
cost of the project. 
 
(Cabinet – 19 February 2014) 

 
1.4 Approval of Revised Statement of Community Involvement when dealing 
with Planning Applications and Producing our Minerals and Waste Local Plans 
 
The Cabinet has approved the adoption of a revised Statement of Community 
Involvement which contains guidance on consultation processes that are to be used 
during the preparation of local plans and in handling planning applications.  The 
production of a Statement of Community Involvement is a legal requirement under 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
(Cabinet – 19 February 2014) 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



 

2. Staffordshire’s People  
 
2.1 Supporting People Review 
 
Changes to government funding have given the County Council the opportunity to 
review its current approach to the Supporting People programme, with the aim of 
sustainably supporting vulnerable members of the community with the resources at 
the Council’s disposal.  With this in mind, Cabinet has decided: 
 
(a) That the principle of focusing resources around early help and targeted support, 
which will prevent many people from needing higher levels of intervention in the 
future, be agreed. 
 
(b) That a move away from the current arrangements for providing housing related 
support in favour of a needs based, integrated approach to commissioning future 
services to be developed with partners and agreed through the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, be agreed. 
 
(c) That current commissioning arrangements be reviewed in line with the Council’s 
agreed outcomes and principles, with a focus on the quality of life of local people. 
  
(d) That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Care to make any and all 
decisions relating to the renewal, variation, cancellation or re-provision of existing 
contractual arrangements (subject to a full Equalities Impact Assessment/Community 
Impact Assessment being undertaken for each such decision to include 
consideration of the length of transition, and the impact on providers, partners and 
localities). 
 
(Cabinet – 19 February 2014) 

 
3. Our Staffordshire 
 
3.1 Third Quarter Budget Monitoring Report 2013/14 
 
The Cabinet has received details of the financial position of the county council 
(including the delivery of the Medium Term Financial Strategy) at the end of the third 
quarter 2013/14.  They noted that, with regard to the Revenue Budget, at quarter 2, 
a forecast overspend of £9.8m (1.9%) was reported. Now at quarter 3, the forecast 
showed an anticipated overspend of £8.538m (1.6%).  Work was continuing to bring 
down the projected overspend.  However, the anticipated overspend had been 
provided for in the MTFS approved by Cabinet on 5 February 2014. 
 
The latest capital outturn projection was £149.7m, compared to the quarter 2 
projection of £158.2m, a decrease of 5.3%. The re-profiling of capital spend and 
additional capital grants were the main reasons for this change. 
 
(Cabinet – 19 February 2014) 

 
3.2 Portfolio Holder Delegated Decisions   
 
Portfolio holders have recently taken decisions in respect of the following matters:  

Page 26



 

• The selection of the preferred delivery partner to become Staffordshire County 
Council’s Strategic Partner on the Infrastructure+ Project. 

 
3.3 Forward Plan   
 
Cabinet has approved the Forward Plan for the period 19 March to 16 July 2014, 
which contains details of the decisions which the Cabinet are expected to take during 
that period.  
 
3.4 A50 Growth Corridor  
 
In my last statement to Full Council I referred to the upcoming A50 Growth Corridor. 
The two projects involved in this programme are yet another example of how the 
county council is driving forward growth in Staffordshire working with our colleagues 
and partners to deliver new opportunities for local employers and attract investment.  
 
The pre-planning consultation is now complete and saw strong attendance at the 
various stakeholder events in the area. Even though the project is government 
funded and on a road managed by the Highways Agency and – the fact the county 
council is carrying out the works, it reflects our excellent reputation for delivery of 
essential highways infrastructure. That reputation is built on i54 South Staffordshire 
in particular and the success we have had in drawing investment from big 
businesses like Jaguar Land Rover. This clearly demonstrates the advantages of 
being proactive, rolling up our sleeves as a county council and getting on with the job 
in hand. 
 
I am sure members will be hearing more and more about this essential project over 
the coming months.   
 
3.5 Mid-Staffordshire NHS Trust  
 
Members will be aware that the Secretary of State for Health has agreed with the 
TSA’s recommendation to dissolve Mid-Staffordshire Trust.  
 
Whilst I am aware that campaigners may be disappointed, it is my intention to ensure 
that the county council is heavily involved in any transition, working with our NHS 
colleagues to ensure the continued improvement in services in Stafford and Cannock 
and to work through the NHS to build a fully integrated health service across the 
whole of Staffordshire.  
 
The crisis at Mid-Staffordshire shocked the nation and led to a long period of doubt 
and concern. We need a new kind of district hospital in Stafford that serves local 
needs and provides the best possible service. I am less concerned about different 
structures or the names of the trusts involved – the primary issue is to get Stafford 
and Cannock back on to a sustainable footing that doesn’t require continued bailing 
out from the government, and can attract the best staff and clinicians to serve local 
people. I have written to the Secretary of State to make this case and to see how we 
can play a role in the future of Stafford and Cannock Hospital and their future 
working with the wider health economy.   
 

Page 27



3.6. Other Items  
 
I have represented the county council at a number of external stakeholder events.  

Page 28



County Council – 13 March 2014 
____________ 

 
Consideration of the Petition in Respect of Youth Services 

 
 
Recommendations 
 
That Council: 
 

1. acknowledges and debates the petition in respect of the Youth Service 
which, given the number of signatures, has triggered the Council’s 
Petition Scheme. 

 
 
Background 
 
The County Council has received the following petition: 
 
We the undersigned petition Staffordshire County Council to reconsider and 
reverse its proposal to remove its Staffordshire Youth Service from the 
delivery of youth provision and of the closing of youth centres in Staffordshire. 
 
The County Council proposes to save £4.5 million by ceasing to directly 
deliver youth services.  This would have a devastating effect on young people, 
parents, carers, communities in which young people live, study, volunteer and 
work in, public and voluntary organisations who work in partnership with the 
Staffordshire Youth Service. 
 
Staffordshire Youth Workers are skilled, professional and experienced people 
who care about young people and make a difference to people’s lives.  What 
the County Council are proposing will destroy a much needed service. 
 
 
The petition consists of a paper petition totalling 15,691 valid signatures and 2 
e-petitions with a total number of signatures of 627.  The overall number of 
valid signatures is hence 16,318.  Under the Council’s Petition Scheme any 
petition that exceeds 5,000 valid signatures automatically triggers a debate at 
the next available Council meeting.  To be a valid petition it must clearly state 
the issue and clearly set out individual signatures and addresses.  To ensure 
the debate is prompted by those that are directly affected by the service or 
pay Council Tax in Staffordshire then only those people who live or work 
within Staffordshire are counted as part of the total for the purposes of the 
scheme. 
 
Structure of the Debate 
 
The structure of the debate is set out in the Council’s Procedural Standing 
Orders.  A lead petitioner will be entitled to speak at the start of the debate 
setting out the background to the petition and what those signing the petition 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



ask of the Council in terms of action in response to the issue.  The petitioner 
will have 5 minutes to present the petition. 
 
After this Council will have the opportunity to debate the issue.  15 minutes is 
set aside for the debate although this may be extended at the discretion of the 
Chairman.   
 
The next stage following the debate at Council is to either summarise a 
response to the issue at the meeting or refer issues to Cabinet for their 
consideration or to the relevant Select Committee.   
 
Council needs to be clear that given the timing of the petition no final decision 
has yet been taken on Youth Services.  That decision will be taken at Cabinet 
on the 19 March 2014.  This provides an opportunity for the debate and 
petition to inform the final decision, alongside the impact assessment and 
wider consultation exercise that will be considered by Cabinet.  It also means 
however that the Cabinet Member isn’t in a position to give a definitive 
response to the decision that may be taken at Cabinet, as it will have not been 
taken at the point of the debate. 
 
Council is also asked to note that the proposals and outcomes of the 
consultation will be scrutinised by the Safe and Strong Select Committee on 
the 17 March prior to the decision being taken. 
 
 

Page 30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staffordshire Local Community Fund 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

2013 Report 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



 

 

 
 
 
 

Introduction 
 

 
 
County Councillors play a vital role in their communities - being local leaders, 
as advocates of the County Council and in making sure that the views of 
constituents influence priorities and services.    
 
The Staffordshire Local Community Fund is one of the most direct and flexible 
ways that County Councillors can respond to local needs.    
 
The Fund gives every Staffordshire County Councillor a sum of money - 
£10,000 each a year - to spend on supporting community projects in their 
area.    
 
For maximum community benefit, County Councillors are encouraged to 
support projects, happening that year, which contribute to one or more of the 
County Council’s priority outcomes.   
 
The Council reviews the operation of the Fund from time to time.  This report 
gives Council the opportunity to reflect on how the Fund is making a 
difference to Staffordshire communities.   

Page 32



 

 

 
 
 
 

The story so far in 2013/14 
 

 
 

• The number of projects supported is 637. 
 

• The funding committed so far is £598,560.62 with £21,439.38 payment 
pending.   

 

• Approximately £1,236,051 of match funding has been generated in 
2013/14, against total project costs of over £2m   
 

• The following pie charts show how the funding so far is distributed 
across the County Council’s priority outcomes.  

 
 

*The 3 new priority outcomes will be set against projects from 1 April 14  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 

 
 
Project Highlights 
 
 
Cannock Chase   
 
 

Western Springs Primary School 

A grant of £1,000 meant that a wetland habitat ‘bog garden’ could be 
created at the school. In partnership with the Staffordshire Wildlife Trust, 
children will landscape the area, grow wetland plants and build fences and 
a bench. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Friends of Hednesford Park 

 

A total of £2,000 was given by two  
Councillors to the Friends of  
Hednesford Park, who plan events 
and activities aimed at encouraging 
community interaction, This particular 
event centered around an ‘It’s a  
Knockout’ tournament, supported by  
stalls, a fair and a disco. 
 

 
 

Silver Circle Silver Hearts 

£475 went towards a gentle exercise class for residents over the age of 50. 
The class concentrated on general fitness, health and wellbeing, with the aim 
of preventing falls and increasing mobility in a safe and social setting. 
 

 
 
 

Staffordshire Industrial Archaeology Society 
 

£684 of Community grant money went towards the printing of a journal that 
details the Ironworks in and near Rugeley and Slitting Mill in the eighteenth- 
and nineteenth- centuries. 
 

Page 34



 

 

 
 
East Staffordshire 
 

Dove Valley ASC 

 

Three Councillors gave £900 towards the 
Dove Valley Amateur Swimming Club Annual  

Club Championships. All swimmers had the  
opportunity to take part in a gala and to 

qualify for the County Championships. The gala 
was followed by a presentation evening with 

an awards presentation and disco.  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Burton Co-operative Learning Trust 
 
Three Councillors gave a total of £4,500 to provide a week of activities for 
children from areas with significant levels of deprivation. The project aimed 
to support learning and maintain levels of engagement over the summer 
holiday period. Children from Year 2 enjoyed ‘Furry Forensics’ activities to 
aid communication in learning, whilst children from Year 5 were led through 
a CSI-type investigation. A variety of summer and half-term activities are  
also planned to engage children in a supportive environment. 

 

Burton Tennis Club 
 

Funding was given towards clothing for all  
existing junior members and future  
participants. The grant also provided free  
taster sessions to local schools. 

                                     

 

 
 

East Staffordshire Rights & Equality Council 
Two Councillors gave a joint amount of £2,000 towards publicity, artist’s 
fees, exhibitions and refreshments as part of the Black History month 
exhibition and events. 

Page 35



 

 

 
 
 

Lichfield 
 

1st Longdon Guide Unit 

A total of £500 went towards the set up costs of a new Guide Unit in 
Longdon. The grant also funded craft materials for the new Unit, 
achievement badges and first aid equipment. 

 

Whittington & Fishwick Environmental Group 

 
 
 
 

A grant of £1,000 was given to the 
Whittington & Fishwick 

Environmental Group, which went 
towards a fruit mill and press to 

enable the community to produce 
juice from local apples. The juice is 
given to the senior citizens living in 

the community and the kit will be 
used to give demonstrations at the 

local village school. 
 

 

Burntwood & District Community First Responders 

Nine Councillors gave a total of £10,100 towards the purchase of a First 
Responder vehicle to respond to local emergency calls. 

 

Lichfield District Council 

The Community Fund supported a 
wildflower planting event  
attended by residents of all ages, 
to improve the visual and  
biodiversity aspects of the local  
park. 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

COGS Prepares for Life 
A grant of £500 was given to the charity to purchase gardening equipment 
to enable people with disabilities to gain skills as gardeners. The project 
aims to then help their members to start working in the local community, 
with the aim of encouraging them to start their own micro businesses. 

Page 36



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Newcastle under Lyme 
 
 

Newcastle Borough Council 

£1375 was put towards sessions aimed towards providing positive activities 
for young people to target anti-social behaviour. The sessions were based 
around teaching skills on looking after skin, make-up, nail art, waxing and 
healthy eating. The sessions also provided valuable information regarding 
entry to education, training and employment. 

 
 

Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service - Fire Cadets 

A total amount of £8,898.34 was put forward by eight Councillors towards 
uniforms, drill suits and instructor training. The Fire Cadets prepares young 
people for adult life, teaching various skills, including teamwork, problem 
solving and communication. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Madeley Parish Council 

A Community Fund grant of £1,000 was given to Madeley Parish Council to 
fund room hire, In Tune music sessions and promotion of the classes. The 
events were created with the aim of increasing memory retention in people 
with dementia. 

  

 
 
 
 
 

North Staffs Special Adventure Playground 
 
Two Councillors put forward a total of £2,500 to run a summer school 
playscheme for children with disabilities to aid development. The project 
was targeted at children with complex needs who are otherwise excluded 
from playschemes and was run with an emphasis placed on social 
inclusion. 

Page 37



 

 

 
 
South Staffordshire 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dunston Playgroup 

A £200 Community Fund grant was given to the Dunston Playgroup to 
enable the painting of a shed as a learning resource. An artist was 
commissioned to design artwork for the shed based on the interests and 
ideas of the Playgroup children. 

 
 

Swan Park Essington 

£2,400 was put towards two swings for the community project, to extend 
the facilities and enable more children to enjoy the park during busy 
periods. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rotary Club of Kinver 
 

A grant of £1,000 funded the 
replacement of the slate information  
top of the toposcope to ensure  
greater durability. The 
current top has been eroded by exposure 
to extreme weather and has become  
unreadable. The toposcope directs 
visitors to the location of local, national  
and international towns and cities.  
 

Staffordshire Library and Information Service  
 

A £500 Community Fund grant was given  
to Penkridge Library to create a piece 

 of artwork to commemorate the link  
between South Staffordshire, the works of 

 J.R.R. Tolkien and the First World War. The  
groups involved in the project included  

young offenders, local reading groups and  
schoolchildren.  

 

Page 38



 

 

 
 
Stafford 
 

Eccleshall Parish Council 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Rotary Club of Stafford 

 

Three County Councillors gave a 
collective grant of £850 towards a 
Children’s Fun Day for children of 
all ages. The day was run in the 
90th anniversary year of Rotary in 
Stafford. The grant money was 
used for activities on the day and 
the promotion of the event.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

South Staffordshire & Shropshire NHS Foundation Trust –  
Arts for Health 

 
A total of £750 was given by three Councillors towards a programme of 
monthly music recitals using musicians from varied genres as evidence has 
shown that music can have a positive impact on mental health, to the local 
community service users. 

 

Stafford Branch of the National Autistic Society 
  
£630 was granted to allow families affected by autism to have the 
opportunity to enjoy a social outing to a Pantomime at the Grand Theatre in 
Wolverhampton, who provide space and trained staff to ensure an 
enjoyable experience. 

 

A grant amount of £1,250 was 
awarded to Eccleshall Parish 
Council towards bespoke 
railings depicting a coach  
and horses and the parish 
crest. 

Page 39



 

 

 
 
 
Staffordshire Moorlands 
 
 

Rudyard Sailability 

A total of £8286.16 was put forward by fourteen  
Councillors to aid completion of a fully 
accessible boathouse for the disabled.  
Rudyard Sailability is a local charity that  
provides sailing and water based activities  
for those living with disabilities in  
Staffordshire.  

                                        also on the front cover 
 
 

 
 

Endon with Stanley Parish Council 

£1,000 was granted to the Parish Council to aid the creation of a Trim Trail 
path on the Hillswood playing fields. The project aimed to create a path that 
can be used by all to improve their health and fitness levels. The path will 
also be available to those with mobility and other sensory difficulties. 

 
 

Cheadle Pensioners Association 

A joint total of £1,000 was given to the Cheadle Pensioners Association to 
enable the group to put on a Christmas party for the pensioners living in the 
community. The grant went towards prizes, a Christmas meal and a disco 
enjoyed by around 90 older people.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Churnet Valley Gospel Singers 
 

A £500 Community Fund grant was given to the organisation to assist in the 
purchase of a P.A. system for the Churnet Valley Gospel Singers. The 
organisation hosts concerts in aid of local charities.  

Page 40



 

 

 
 
Tamworth 
 
 

Tamworth Amateur Boxing Club 

£1,000 worth of funding was provided to enable the purchase of mirrors, to 
help with the skill development of the boxers. The Club is aiming to engage 
with the wider community using different forms of exercise and the mirrors 
will help to provide the opportunities for new classes to be created. 

 

 

Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service – Tamworth Division 

A total of £8,673.47 was given by eleven Councillors towards the Street 
Stadia project. The aim of the project is to deliver specific education to 
young people with an intention of reducing anti-social behaviour. Physical 
activity programmes were developed to improve health and wellbeing and 
to teach the benefits of healthy lifestyles, whilst encouraging young people 
to become active citizens within their community.  

 

The Friends of Homestart Tamworth 

 
£750 of Community Fund grant enabled a zumba class to be set up 
aimed at parents with young children. It was identified that popular 
activities are mainly run in the evening, which causes problems for 
those with young children. The project aims to tackle the raising 
obesity levels in Tamworth and promote fitness. 

 

 
 
 
 

Care First Ltd 
 

A £1,494 grant was given  
towards the Greenhouse Café,  
aimed at giving adults with mental  
health and learning disabilities the  
opportunity to socialise, learn about  
healthy eating, learn new skills through  
accredited learning and to increase 
interaction with the public. The Café  
promotes independent living through  
growing and cooking food. 

 

Page 41



 

 

 
 
 

Fund arrangements for April 14- March 2015 
 

• Applications may be submitted from 1 April 14 and the deadline for all 
applications is 15 December 14 please allow sufficient time from 
submitting the forms to any deadlines that may apply to each project. 
 

• All projects must be in a position to be completed in this financial year 
from April 2014 - 31 March 2015. 
 

• County Councillors who are standing for election on 22 May 2014 
will be unable to submit applications during the period of 1 April – 
22 May 14. Applications will be accepted from 23 May 2014.  
 

• The Staffordshire Local Community Fund remains one, positive way of 
encouraging social action and responding to the localism agenda which 
reinforces the role of councillors alongside the need for councils to be 
bold and decisive for the benefit of their communities.   

 

Process for applications 

 
1. The organiser contacts their local County Councillor to: find out if the 
County Councillor has money left to allocate; discuss their proposed project; 
and establish if the Councillor agrees to support it and the amount of funding 
concerned.   
 
2. The organiser submits a completed and signed application form direct to 
the County Councillor. 
 
3. The County Councillor submits their chosen applications to the Director of 
Democracy, Law and Transformation with a signed record sheet, advising of 
the amount of funding agreed and identifying the priority outcomes that are 
supported by the proposed project.   
 
4. The Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation considers each 
application and advises the County Councillor whether or not it meets the few 
rules about the operation of the Fund (put in place to make sure that the 
County Council’s legal and financial position is safeguarded).    
 
5. If the application meets the rules, it is approved.   
 
6. Funds will be paid providing all additional funding required for the project 
has been raised.   
 
7. On payment of the grant the Organisation will receive a letter of 
confirmation a certificate and publicity guidance. 

 

Page 42



 

 

 
 
 

Assistance for Members 
 

• Contact officer Heather Collingwood, Support Officer, Member and 
Democratic Services - 01785 276019 or 
heather.collingwood@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

• Advice on supporting community projects is also available to County 
Councillors from the Community Partnership Officers. 
 

          Naomi Chesters - 07964331670 - Newcastle and Moorlands 
naomi.chesters@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 
           Sarah Garner - 07807137125 - Stafford and South Staffs 

sarah.garner@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 
           Graham Hunt – 07969726571 - Cannock and East Staffs 

graham.hunt@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 
           Sarah Jones – 07814372657- Lichfield and Tamworth 

sarah.jones@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Publicising the Fund outcomes 
 

• When accepting funding of over £1,000, the organiser is committing to 
publicising their project, telling people about the community benefits 
and its association with the Staffordshire Local Community Fund.   

 

• The County Council provides a guide to publicity which covers events, 
photo opportunities, press releases and contacts. 
 

•  Organisers are encouraged to contact and involve their County 
Councillor/s in any publicity or events and to send in examples, such as 
press cuttings, of where they are successful in gaining publicity.   
 

 Community Fund web page includes lists of paid applications. 
 

• http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/slcf/home.aspx 
 

 

Page 43



Page 44



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 
Recommendations to the Council 

____________ 
 

Treasury Management, Annual Investment and Minimum  
Revenue Provision Strategies 2014/15 

 
1.  The management of the County Council’s cash flows and borrowing have a 
significant impact on the budget.   
 
The Cabinet, at their meeting on 15 January 2014, approved the proposed strategies 
for the 2014/15 financial year. 
 
Adoption of the Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) and the adoption of the Minimum 
Revenue Provision policy are however, matters that are reserved for the Full Council 
to determine. 
  
2.  Recommend – That, in accordance with the regulations:  
 
(a) The Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) 2014/15 as described in paragraphs 26 to 
75 and as detailed in Appendices 2 and 4 of the report considered by the Cabinet 
(attached) be adopted. 
 
(b) That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy 2014/15 as summarised in 
paragraphs 110 to 112; and as set out in full at Appendix 8 to the report considered by 
the Cabinet (attached), be adopted. 
 

Members’ Allowances Scheme - 
Independent Remuneration Panel Report 

 
3. The County Council is required to establish and maintain an Independent 
Remuneration Panel to provide advice and recommendations to the Council on its 
Members’ Allowances Scheme.  Any decisions on the nature and level of allowances 
are a matter for the full Council, but the Council must have regard to any 
recommendations submitted by the Independent Remuneration Panel before 
establishing or amending the Members’ Allowances Scheme.  The Panel meets each 
year to consider the recommendations to be made to the Council in respect of the 
level and nature of the forthcoming year’s allowances.   
 
(Note: The Independent Remuneration Panel’s report of March 2014, including 
recommendations on the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2014/15 has been sent to 
all members of the County Council and copies have been placed in the Resource 
Rooms and members’ library in County Buildings; alternatively a copy is available at  -  
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/members/membersallowances/irpreport2014-2015.pdf 

 
4. Recommend –  (a) The Council’s views on the recommendations of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel are requested. 

(b) The period of office for Ray Betteridge and Jane Landick, members of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel be extended for a further period of 12 months to 31 
March 2015. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 45



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

(c) That a letter of thanks be sent to Ian Starkie and Gerald Griffin following their 
retirement from the Panel on 31 March 2014, in recognition of their nine years’ service 
as members of the Panel, of which Ian Starkie served for two years as Chairman.  
 

Page 46



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 

APPENDIX 
Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) 2014/15 

 
26. The council manages a significant investment portfolio that can reach over 

£250m in cash each year. Since the financial crisis in 2008, the council has 
taken a low risk approach and the AIS continues in this vein. 

 
Investment options 
 

27. The main characteristics which determine an investment strategy are related 
to; 

• the credit risk of the counterparties that you invest with 

• the length of the investment 

• the type of financial instrument that is used. 
 

28. These issues have to be considered in the light of the regulatory framework 
provided by the Government. 

 
29. Key parts of this framework are the Government Guidance on Local 

Government Investments issued in March 2010 and the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. These state that that 
the two prime risk issues are; 

• the security of capital 

• the liquidity of investments. 
 
30. In addition, Government regulations specify the type of financial instruments 

you can invest in and they divide them into what they term ‘specified’ 
investments and ‘non-specified’ investments.  

 
a.) Specified investments 

 
31. Specified investments are investments made in sterling for a period of less 

than a year that are not counted as capital expenditure and are invested with; 

• the UK Government 

• a local authority 

• a parish or community council 

• a body, or in an investment instrument, that has ‘high credit quality’.  
 
32. The first three named investments will be used by the council by virtue of their 

inclusion within the guidance (referred to as regulation investments 
subsequently in this report). The assessment of the fourth aspect is dealt with 
in the paragraphs that follow. 

 
33. Whilst it is difficult to define ‘high credit quality’, credit ratings are published by 

credit rating agencies (for example, Fitch, Standard and Poors, Moodys); this 
information is provided by the council’s treasury adviser, Arlingclose, where 
available. 

 
 Money Market Funds (MMF’s) 
 
34. Money Market Funds are pooled investment vehicles consisting of money 

market deposits and similar instruments. Arlingclose recommend the use of 

Page 47



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

MMF’s by their local government clients, and these have been used for some 
time by the council. 

 
35. The European Commission (EC) has proposed regulations which will stop 

MMF’s from having credit ratings and could be in force as early as next year. 
This would not mean a fundamental change to the underlying structure of 
MMF’s, but would remove the ‘AAA’ rating which the council previously 
required an MMF to have to be included on the lending list. 

 
36. In light of the potential EC proposals coming into force, it is MMF’s that meet 

the criteria listed below which will be considered to have high credit quality and 
will be included on the lending list: 

• They are recommended to clients by the council’s treasury adviser, 
Arlingclose. 

• Diversified – MMF’s are diversified across many different investments, 
far more than the council could hope to achieve on its own account. 

• Same day liquidity – this means that funds can be accessed on a daily 
basis. 

• Stable fund value – the council invests a pound and redeems a pound. 

• Ring-fenced assets – the investments are owned by the investors and 
not the fund management company. 

• Custodian – the investments are also managed by an independent bank 
known as a custodian, who operates at arms-length from the fund 
management company. 

 
37. All treasury activity carry an element of risk and MMF’s are no different. In the 

event of a further financial crisis, the failure of one or more of an MMF’s 
investments could lead to a run on the MMF as investors rush to redeem their 
investment. This could then spread to other MMF’s as investors take flight from 
this asset class. 

 
38. The very low interest rate environment also threatens the ongoing continuity of 

MMF’s. Each MMF charges a fee and this could mean that interest earned 
became negative after its deduction. If this problem arose then it would be a 
matter of moving funds to an alternative class of investment. 

 
39. All of these issues point towards the fundamental need for diversification 

across MMF’s and also investment categories. This issue is dealt with later in 
this report (see paragraph 58). 

 
 The credit management strategy for 2014/15 
 

40. Government guidance requires an explanation of how credit quality is 
monitored, what happens when it changes and what additional sources of 
information are used to assess credit quality. 

 
41. The assessment of what is “high credit quality” for banks or building societies is 

set out in this section of the report. 
 
42.  Arlingclose are the council’s treasury advisor and an important aspect of this 

service is credit advice. This is where the advisor provides information to the 
council about suitable investments in the context of the current economic risk 
environment and incorporates the views of credit rating agencies. What follows 

Page 48



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

is an overview of how this operates, within this it is important to understand that 
the council is responsible for the decisions it takes with its investments. 

 
 
43. Credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies form an 

important, but not the only, aspect of how creditworthiness is assessed by 
Arlingclose. For 2014/15 minimum credit-rating thresholds are set at a long-
term rating of “A-" where available. Counterparties that are rated below this 
level are excluded. 

 
44. In addition the following are also considered: 

• Statements of potential government support. 

• Credit Default Swaps (CDS) (i.e. the cost of insuring against counterparty 
default). 

• Share prices. 

• Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the country of incorporation. 

• Macro-economic factors. 

• Information in the press. 

• A subjective overlay, i.e. a judgement being made about whether the 
counterparty should be recommended or not. 

 
45. In practical terms all of this information is considered by Arlingclose when they 

determine their recommendations. Any change in these criteria can result in a 
counterparty being removed from the lending list, not solely a change in credit 
rating. 

 
46. In essence, the Arlingclose system is not a mechanical or mathematical one 

where scores are attributed to different criteria leading to a recommendation. 
This is a system where a wide range of information is considered to form a 
judgement on what should be included on the lending list. 

 
47. In the recent past, the economic environment has been very volatile, so the 

advice provided by Arlingclose results in counterparties with high quality credit 
characteristics that are intended to insulate the council against further volatility. 
Of course, the future cannot be foreseen and in some situations changes may 
need to be made quickly, but this is considered a cautious approach. 

 
48. The council remains responsible for its investment decisions. The Treasury 

Management Panel, chaired by the Director of Finance and Resources, meets 
monthly and a review of the lending list and any changes made by Arlingclose 
will take place at these meetings. In between meetings the Treasury and 
Pension Fund team will implement any recommendations made by Arlingclose. 
On the rare occasion that Arlingclose do not make a firm recommendation then 
this will be referred to the Panel for their review. 

 
49. Under stressed market conditions, additional panel meetings may take place at 

very short notice after which the panel may decide to adjust the council’s 
investment risk profile. The end result may involve moving investments to lower 
risk counterparties or instruments. 

 
 Monitoring 
 
50. As required, an overview of the monitoring process is outlined below: 

Page 49



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

• Rating changes and significant changes in risk indicators will be 
communicated to the Treasury and Pension Fund team by Arlingclose 
together with any revisions to their recommendations. 
 
 

• Changes are sent by e-mail and in urgent situations followed up by a phone 
call as Arlingclose hold a record of the lending list of approved investment 
counterparties. 

 
51. The proposed AIS would be based on the following definition of high credit 

quality: 

• Regulation investments as set out. 

• Diversified sterling Money Market Funds meeting the criteria set out. 

• A bank or building society that is recommended by Arlingclose for inclusion 
on the lending list. 
 

 The Co-operative Bank 
 
52. For many years the Co-operative Bank (“the Co-op”) have acted as the 

council’s banker; significant funds flow through these accounts over the course 
of a typical year. On rare occasions, up to £50m can clear through these bank 
accounts on a single day. Recently a fall in the credit rating of the Co-op have 
led to the council withdrawing from overnight investments with the bank. As a 
result, the intention is to manage the balances held with the Co-op as close to 
nil as possible each day. 

  
53. These cuts to the Co-op’s credit ratings have reflected problems with the banks 

financing; although this has been resolved the design and implementation of 
this plan have led to the Co-op deciding to withdraw from the local authority 
banking market place.  

  
54. Because of the initial uncertainty surrounding the recapitalisation process 

contingency banking arrangements have been put in place with Barclays Bank. 
Whilst these cannot hope to mirror the full extent of the council’s banking 
arrangements, they are designed to provide a contingency if the Co-op are 
unable to provide the usual level of service. 

 

55. These events mean that the Council needs to commence a selection process 
in the knowledge that a new banking provider will be needed; this is an 
undertaking of significant difficulty and magnitude. At the time of writing this 
report the selection process has yet to be determined, but it will have due 
regard to financial regulations and contract standing orders. The appointment 
will be followed by an implementation process that is likely to take several 
months. 

 
Investment duration for specified investments 

 
56. In considering the financial instruments that meet the definition of a specified 

investment, there is the scope to consider the length of the investment period. 
 
57. One of the important lessons of the banking crisis has been to exercise caution 

in the duration of investments with banks and building societies, this 
recognises that the factors that led to the investment being considered sound 
can change adversely over time. As such it is judged reasonable to limit fixed 

Page 50



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

term deposits with banks or building societies to a maximum duration of 12 
months, regardless of the advice provided by Arlingclose.  

 
 

Page 51



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 
 
Investment diversification 

 
58. Having determined the lending list of highly rated counterparties and the 

duration of investments the last piece of the process is to overlay the 
methodology for ensuring diversification. This is achieved by setting a 
maximum amount to be invested with each counterparty to limit risk and spread 
investments. 

 
59. Ensuring diversification has never been more important; it protects the security 

of the investments by limiting the council’s loss in the event of a counterparty 
default. However, diversification does not protect the council from a systemic 
failure of the banking sector. 

 
60. Investment balances rise and fall during the year, so diversification needs to 

take account of this. Arlingclose recommend limits based upon percentages so 
it is proposed to adopt these, and the treasury team review and reset the these 
limits at least once a month with reference to future cash balances. This action 
will then be ratified by the Treasury Panel at their next meeting. The interval 
between each review is very much a matter of balance between ensuring 
diversification and efficient processing as investment balances cannot 
practically be moved each day to accommodate shifting limits. It is judged that 
a monthly review strikes this balance. 

 
61. Investment diversification is proposed at two levels; firstly at investment 

category level: 
 

  

 Investment category 

  

Maximum % of 
total investments 

Regulation Investments * 100% 

MMF 50% 

Banks and Building Societies 50% 

 
*no limit is proposed, in certain circumstances these may be utilised for all of the 
council’s investments.  
 
62. Secondly, diversification will also take place at investment level: 
 

Banks and Building Societies 

Lower of: 

£m 
Maximum investment as a 

proportion of the total 

 30  15% 

 

Page 52



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 

 

MMF 

Lower of: 

Maximum investment 
as a proportion of total 

MMF size 

Maximum investment as a 
proportion of the total 

0.50% 10% 

 
63. It is proposed that both the application and amendment of this policy are 

delegated to the Treasury Management Panel chaired by the Director of 
Finance and Resources with the results reported in the regular treasury 
management reports. 
 
b.) Non-specified investments 

 
64. The Government regulations define non-specified investments as all other 

types of investment that do not meet the definition of specified investments. In 
contrast to specified investments, government guidance indicates that the AIS 
should; 

• set out procedures for determining which categories of non-specified 
investments should be prudently used 

• identify such investments 

• state an upper limit for each category of non specified investment 

• state upper limits for the total amount to be held in such investments. 
 

65. The 2013/14 Half-year report presented to cabinet on 16 October 2013 set out 
an urgent decision taken under delegated powers to invest long-term with other 
local authorities (a non-specified investment). The decision to invest with other 
local authorities was capped at £45m and 40 years in duration. 

 
66. Since the decision was taken under delegated powers, the county council has 

managed to invest £30m long term with two separate local authorities. This has 
been in four separate investments at an average yield of around 4% and an 
average duration of under 19 years. (The full details of these investments will 
be reported in the 2013/14 Outturn Report). 

 
 Other non-specified investments 
 
67. In terms of ensuring future flexibility there are additional categories of 

investments that are also proposed for use within the AIS. None of the non-
specified investments proposed below present additional security risk to those 
investments within specified investments. Each are explained below: 

• Certificates of Deposit – identical to a fixed term deposit excepting the fact 
that they can be sold if needs be. This additional liquidity makes these 
investments more attractive to the council. 

• Government gilts / bonds – “AAA” rated and equivalent to the DMADF 
account and T-bills, simply a longer term investment with the UK 
Government that can also be sold. 

• Multilateral development bank bonds – “AAA” rated, these are institutions 
created and backed by a group of countries which can be sold as needed. 

Page 53



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 
68. Each of these investments is subject to market risk; this is the risk that the 

value of the investment can go down as well as up. In order to avoid this risk, 
the inclusion of these investment instruments is proposed only on the basis 
that if purchased they would be held until maturity under normal circumstances. 
At maturity the investment and expected interest would be paid in full. 

 
69. In the case of Certificates of Deposit then these would only be sold early on the 

basis that there were concerns over the borrower defaulting. This liquidity is 
one of the attractions of this type of investment. 

 
70. The addition of these investments allows the council to manage interest rate 

risk more effectively and in that sense reduces this risk. Investments that 
involve this judgement will only be taken by a decision of the Treasury 
Management Panel chaired by the Director of Finance and Resources. 

 
71. In addition it is also possible to invest in collective investment schemes. There 

are many types of these with varying different risk and return profiles, but the 
category has been included here subject to a decision of the Treasury 
Management Panel. 

 
72. It is proposed to cap the investment in these other categories of non-specified 

investments at £25m in total. When taken with the long-term local authority 
investment (£45m) the final total is £70m. This is reflected in Appendix 5, 
prudential indicators (point 5). 

 
73. Appendix 2 sets out the investment categories authorised for use in 2014/15 

and Appendix 4 list the actual counterparties recommended by Arlingclose at 
the time of writing this report. 

 
 
 
 Risk assessment 
 

74. Although guidance sets out security and liquidity as being the main risks, they 
are not the only risks in investing. Appendix 3 sets out a high-level risk 
assessment of six of the key risks, these are summarised in the following table: 

 
 

Risk Assessment 

Security Low 

Liquidity Low 

Interest rate Low to Medium 

Market Low 

Refinancing Low to Medium 

Regulatory and Legal Low 

 
75. The proposed strategy has been assessed against these risks and the 

judgement is that the most important risks have been reduced as far as 
possible, this is not to say that all risk has been eliminated which is not 
possible in treasury terms. 

 

Page 54



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

Appendix 2 
Cabinet – 15 January 2014. Investment categories authorised for use 2014/15 

 

Investment Specified* Non-Specified Comments 

UK Government - Debt Management Account 

Deposit Facility (DMADF) (regulation investment) 
unlimited n/a 6 months maximum available 

UK Government - Treasury Bills (T-Bills) 

(regulation investment) 
unlimited n/a 6 months maximum available 

UK local authorities term deposits (regulation 

investment) 
unlimited £45m Up to 40 years in duration (non-specified) 

Money Market Funds  ���� n/a 

50% of total investments in this category 

Lower of 0.50% of MMF size or 10% of all investments 

per MMF 

Term deposits with banks and building societies  ���� ���� 

50% of total investments in this category 

Lower of 15% of total investments or £30m per 

counterparty 

Certificates of deposit with banks and building 

societies 
���� ���� 

UK Government - Gilts ���� ���� 

Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks ���� ���� 

Collective Investment Schemes ���� ���� 

Maximum £25m across all of these categories in total 

* Up to 12 months

P
a
g
e

 5
5



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 

Lending List – December 2013 

 Time Limit 

Regulation Investments  

DMADF account 6 months 

UK Government T-bills 6 months 

UK Local Authority 12 months 

  

Banks and Building Societies  

Barclays 12 months 

HSBC 12 months 

Lloyds / Bank of Scotland 6 months 

Nationwide 12 months 

RBS / NatWest overnight 

Santander 6 months 

  

MMF  

Black Rock same day 

Insight same day 

Federated same day 

Ignis same day 

 
 
 
 
 

        
Appendix 4 

Cabinet – 15 January 2014 
 
           
 
 
           

Page 56



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

Minimum Revenue Position Strategy 2014/15 
 
110. The council are also legally obliged to have regard to government guidance 

issued in February 2008 concerning the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
policy. MRP is where the council must make an annual revenue provision for 
the repayment of debt (also referred to as the Capital Financing Requirement 
or CFR). The MRP policy must be submitted to the full council for approval 
prior to the start of the financial year to which the provision will relate. The 
policy for 2014/15 is summarised below and shown in full at Appendix 8. 

 
111. Following guidance issued in 2007/08 regarding the Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP), it is proposed to continue the agreed policy as follows: 

• The major proportion of the MRP for 2014/15 will relate to the more 
historic debt liability that will continue to be charged at the rate of 4%, in 
accordance with the recommendations and intent of Option 1 of the 
guidance. 

 

• Further amounts of new capital expenditure may continue to be charged at 
the rate of 4%, and added to the above mentioned base CFR amount, up 
to an amount equivalent to the council’s annual Supported Capital 
Expenditure (Revenue) allocation. 

 

• Certain expenditures reflected within the debt liability at 31 March 2014 will 
under delegated powers be subject to MRP under Option 3. 

 
112. In practical terms, this approach means that capital expenditure funded from 

supported borrowing (that is, supported by government grant) will be repaid at 
4%. However, expenditure funded from unsupported borrowing will be repaid 
at a rate which matches the useful lives of those assets funded. This will 
result in a saving for the authority as the debt can be spread over a longer 
period of time, for example 60 years where a building has been funded from 
unsupported borrowing (that is, supported by the council). The MRP Policy 
statement for 2014/15 is shown at Appendix 8. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 57



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

Appendix 8 
Cabinet – 15 January 2014 

 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement  

 
Introduction 

 
Capital expenditure is expenditure on assets which have a life expectancy of more 
than one year e.g. buildings, vehicles, machinery etc. It would be impractical to 
charge the entirety of such expenditure to revenue in the year in which it was 
incurred therefore such expenditure is spread over several years in order to try to 
match the years over which such assets benefit the local community through their 
useful life.  
 
The manner of spreading these costs is through an annual Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP), which was previously determined under Regulation, and will in 
future be determined under Guidance. 

 
The Government issued guidance which came into force on 31 March 2008 which 
requires that a Statement on the council’s policy for its annual MRP should be 
submitted to the full council for approval before the start of the financial year to 
which the provision will relate. 

 
The guidance offers four main options under which MRP could be made (for 
information these are detailed over the page), with an overriding recommendation 
that the Council should make prudent provision to redeem its debt liability over a 
period which is reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital 
expenditure is estimated to provide benefits. 

 
MRP Policy Statement 2014/15  
 
The council implemented the new MRP guidance in 2009/10, and will assess their 
MRP for 2014/15 in accordance with the main recommendations contained within 
the guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 21(1A) of the Local 
Government Act 2003.  
 
The major proportion of the MRP for 2014/15 will relate to the more historic debt 
liability that will continue to be charged at the rate of 4%, in accordance with the 
recommendations and intent of Option 1 of the Guidance. 
 
Further amounts of new capital expenditure may continue to be charged at the 
rate of 4%, and added to the above mentioned base Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) amount, up to an amount equivalent to the council’s annual 
Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue) allocation. 
 
Certain expenditures reflected within the debt liability at 31 March 2014 will under 
delegated powers be subject to MRP under Option 3. 
 
Estimated life periods will be determined under delegated powers. To the extent 
that expenditure is not on the creation of an asset and is of a type that is subject 

Page 58



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

to estimated life periods that are referred to in the guidance, these periods will 
generally be adopted by the council. However, the council reserves the right to 
determine useful life periods and prudent MRP in exceptional circumstances 
where the recommendations of the guidance would not be appropriate.  

 
Asset lives will be assessed on a basis which most reasonably reflects the 
anticipated period of benefit that arises from the expenditure. Also, whatever type 
of expenditure is involved, it will be grouped together in a manner which reflects 
the nature of the main component of expenditure and will only be divided up in 
cases where there are two or more major components with substantially different 
useful economic lives. 

 
Option 1: Regulatory Method 

Under the previous MRP regulations, MRP was set at a uniform rate of 4% of the 
adjusted CFR (i.e. adjusted for “Adjustment A”) on a reducing balance method 
(which in effect meant that MRP charges would stretch into infinity). This historic 
approach must continue for all capital expenditure incurred in years before the 
start of this new approach. It may also be used for new capital expenditure up to 
the amount which is deemed to be supported through the SCE annual allocation. 
 
Option 2: Capital Financing Requirement Method 

This is a variation on option 1 which is based upon a charge of 4% of the 
aggregate CFR without any adjustment for Adjustment A, or certain other factors 
which were brought into account under the previous statutory MRP calculation. 
The CFR is the measure of an authority’s outstanding debt liability as depicted by 
their balance sheet. 
 
Option 3: Asset Life Method. 

This method may be applied to most new capital expenditure, including where 
desired that which may alternatively continue to be treated under options 1 or 2. 
 
Under this option, it is intended that MRP should be spread over the estimated 
useful life of either an asset created, or other purpose of the expenditure. There 
are two useful advantages of this option: - 

• Longer life assets e.g. freehold land can be charged over a longer period than 
would arise under options 1 and 2. 

• No MRP charges need to be made until the financial year after that in which 
an item of capital expenditure is fully incurred and, in the case of a new asset, 
comes into service use (this is often referred to as being an ‘MRP holiday’). 
This is not available under options 1 and 2. 

 
There are two methods of calculating charges under option 3:  

a. equal instalment method – equal annual instalments, 

b. annuity method – annual payments gradually increase during the life of the 
asset. 

 

Page 59



RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 

 

Option 4: Depreciation Method 

Under this option, MRP charges are to be linked to the useful life of each type of 
asset using the standard accounting rules for depreciation (but with some 
exceptions) i.e. this is a more complex approach than option 3.  
 
The same conditions apply regarding the date of completion of the new 
expenditure as apply under option 3. 

 

Page 60



REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE STAFFORDSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Report of the Chairman of the  
Staffordshire Police and Crime Panel  

 
The Panel is set up under the Police Reform and Social Responsibilities Act 2011.Its role is 
to scrutinise and support the Police and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire who was 
elected in 2012 
 

Outlined below is summary of the work of the Panel since my last report to Council on 
Thursday 10 October 2013. 
 

1.  Police and Crime Panel Meeting Monday 4 November 2013 
 
The Panel met at Stoke Civic Centre to consider the Commissioner’s draft Medium Term 
Financial Plan, reports on the Strategic Property Partnership and Police Performance. 
 
A member reported on attendance at CoPACC (Comparing Police and Crime 
Commissioners) Conference on 16 October. The event that was well attended included 
discussions on arrangements for Police and Crime Panel when scrutinising Police and Crime 
Commissioners.   
 

The Commissioner reported that he had widened the scope of the PCC Audit Committee and 
a recruitment of independent members intended to represent a wider diversity on the new 
Ethics, Transparency and Assurance Committee, further information would be brought to a 
future meeting. 
  
A member of the public attended the meeting to ask a question of the Commissioner.  She 
was working as a volunteer at a CCTV town centre scheme in Newcastle was seeking an 
extension of her hours of the scheme but understood that there were funding issues in this 
regard but thought the request was justified.  Councillor Kearon member for Newcastle 
Borough Council agreed to take the matter back for discussion with the Borough Council 
  
The Panel discussed with the Commissioner a variety of issues such as increased use of IT, 
Commissioners ‘Straight Talk sessions’ .The flexibility of officers moving from urban to rural 
areas, the recruitment of police special constables  and an update on Stage 2 transfers. On 
the question of vulnerable members of society and how they could be protected against 
burglary, the Commissioner expressed the view that there was scope for a joint initiative 
between the Fire Service and Police Service that he would like to see this take place. On 
police recruitment; he reported that there will be less reduction in police numbers than he had 
inherited. He informed members of a review of the Elite Special Constabulary under the remit 
of the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner. 
  
A final version of the Police and Crime Plan was circulated.  Delivery plans were now being 
worked up and will be in place by the next financial year. In relation to the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy members requested   that more detailed plans be brought to the next 
meeting, and  a written response to a number of questions which could not be addressed at 
that time  due to time constraints. 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 61



REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE STAFFORDSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 The Commissioner announced his decision to approve in principal work in the County 
Council on a Strategic Property Partnership with an emphasis on the use of commercial 
expertise. There was an assurance it would not result in a loss of control of the assets by 
current owners and crucially that no benefit would accrue to the private sector unless there 
was demonstration of savings for the public sector. Costs of entering into the partnership will 
be shared if benefits do not accrue. 
  
The Panel received an update on the Commissioners approach to performance management 
demonstrating a move away from a snapshot and a target culture to a review of trends and 
patterns over time, allowing the police to put crimes into context and focus on the victim. He 
advised of further work to be undertaken to make the information relevant to local 
communities. Also additional work was ongoing to establish the” victim gateway “that will be 
defined early next year. 
  
Members agreed to a draft work programme, including identification of subject “Champions” 
for the priorities in the Police and Crime Plan.  A role description   for “Champions “was being 
developed. 
  
2.  Police and Crime Panel Meeting Monday 27 January 2014 
 

The Panel met on Monday 27 January 2014 the principal agenda items were the Police and 
Crime Commissioners Draft Revenue Budget and Precept 2014/15 together with Community 
Fund update and Force Performance 1April -31Dec 2013. 
 

The Panel received the Budget and Precept report from the Commissioner in accord with the 
statutory requirement under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. The 
Commissioner was asked to explain and clarify certain aspects before the Panel supported it. 
Issues included investment in local areas, neighbourhood policing, new technology, Special 
Constables and general levels of policing.  
 

The Panel received the Community Funding update from the Commissioner which gave 
details of projects awarded funding during 2013/14. The Panel welcomed the Commissioners 
decision to increase the funding available for projects. The Commissioners officers are 
developing systems for assessment of bids for 2014/15 to enable monitoring of performance 
and outcomes in line with the Commissioners “four priorities”, Early Intervention, Managing 
Offenders, Supporting Victims Witnesses, and Public Confidence. 
 

The Commissioner advised in respect of Force Performance that in general terms things 
were positive, with a greater level of transparency and accuracy in the recorded crime 
figures. He was consistent with his move away from the traditional target culture, and advised 
that early signs were encouraging, outcomes for victims were better and the police supported 
and embraced the new ethos. 
 

Further Information - the webpage for the Police and Crime Panel can be accessed from 
the following link:  http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=831 
 
Frank Chapman 
Chairman Staffordshire Police and Crime Panel 
Staffordshire County Council 

Page 62



STOKE-ON-TRENT AND STAFFORDSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 

 

 

Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
Periodic Report of the Chairman on Authority Matters 

 
 

2014/15 Revenue Budget and Council Tax Setting 
 

1. The Authority has set a Revenue Budget requirement for 2014/15 of £41,501,728, 
which incorporates the Settlement Funding announced by Government of 
£19,703,960 and the Council Tax requirement of £21,797,768.   

 
The budget has been set based upon the two year settlement issued by the 
Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) on 18 December 2013.  
This budget is the first year of that settlement and incorporates the revised funding 
arrangements that will come into place from 1 April 2014.  The funding for this 
Authority incorporates a reduction of £1.54m in Settlement Funding Assessment. 
 
The budget incorporates the acceptance of the Government’s offer of a 1% freeze 
grant to those principal authorities that choose not to increase Council Tax in 
2014/15.  Therefore a Band D property will remain at £67.64.  DCLG has announced 
that the freeze grant compensation will be incorporated into the Settlement Funding 
for the Authority, along with the Freeze Grants from 2011/12 and 2013/14.  The 
freeze grant for 2012/13 of £0.7m was removed from funding in 2013/14.   
 
The budget process for 2014/15 has involved full consultation with all budget holders 
calculated from a zero base.  Where possible all recurring efficiencies and savings 
achieved during 2013/14 have been incorporated into the base budget.  
 
The budget also recognises the commitment by the Service to fully support the 
ongoing Business Transformation Programme.  To support this commitment the 
Authority approved an annual target saving of £1m in the budget year. 
 
The Authority also remains fully committed to effectively utilising the Specific 
Reserve of £8.6m (as at 31 March 2013) to fund Invest to Save opportunities and 
has budgeted to use £0.2m during 2014/15 to fund the ongoing innovations 
programme. 
 
The Director of Finance, Assets and Resources has assured the Authority in respect 
of the adequacy of reserves and the robustness of the budget.  
 
Over recent years the professional and political partnership has achieved £5.9m in 
savings at the same time as delivering the best performance in the Service’s history.  
The Service monitors the response requirements closely, including the attendance of 
crews at national incidents eg flooding.  Assurances have also been given that there 
will be no compromise to community and firefighter safety.  The Service and 
Authority has demonstrated the capability to embrace change and the input of staff 
and Members is vital to meet the financial challenges going forward.    

 
 

L W Bloomer 
Chairman 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 63



Page 64


	Agenda
	General Housekeeping and Declaring an Interest
	3 Confirmation of the minutes of the Council meeting held on 13 February 2014
	5 Statement of the Leader of the Council
	7 Consideration of the Petition in Respect of Youth Services
	8 Annual Report on the Staffordshire Local Community Fund 2013
	9 Recommendations to Council
	10 Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel
	11 Report of the Chairman of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Authority

